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  Preface


  -------  


The following is an attempt to provide in one place a list of questions and answers for THE LONGEST DAY.  (This, in and of


itself, cannot be totally true since some questions were deleted if it was felt that they were answered by careful reading of the rulebook.  Also omitted has been the information from Vol. 17, No. 6.  For those of you who are really interested in TLD, this list is essential.  I would urge you to obtain a back issue if you do not already have a copy.  Of special note, the issue contains scenario addenda and German unit entry errata which are important to play of the game.]  For the questions included here, I owe a debt to all who wrote in asking them and apologize to those who will find their answers changed by a couple of them.  These changes are based on a better understanding and the more thorough research which this article necessitated.  At any rate, continued questioning should be welcome to any gamer, as this is the only way to improve both design and development.








COUNTERS, MAPBOARD and


UNIT ENTRY CARDS





American:





82nd: The 319 and 320 artillery battery counters which must be made have the following characteristics:  Range: 6, (3) - 1-8, Howitzer, Stacking: 1.  They are members of the 82nd Division.  They are landed in Zone "O" during build-up.  Add 2/507 to the unidentified 82nd battalion.  For both the 82 and the 101st divisions, all of the units on the second line of their box in the Allied Assault Landing Schedule enter on the build-up phase (except for those listed as D+1).





1st:  Add the division number to 1/18 and the recon unit.





29th:  Add the division number to the back of 1/115. 





3rd Arm.:  Add the division number to 3/36.





Artillery 65th (3-2-6):  This unit does not enter as an assault unit (first line), but as a non-divisional reinforcement.





Armored Car (3-4-8):  One of the units numbered 102 is actually the 38th, and both of these units enter after 24 July.





Supply: You are short one counter.








British:





6th Para:  The seven units on the bottom line of this division's entry schedule are dropped during the build-up phase.





Armored Battalions 6/2C and 10/2C:  These units are DD's.








German:





91st:  1/6FS is located one hex NW of St. Jores on Board B.





352nd:  513, 517, and 518 are the unnumbered bicycle units on the SE area of Board B.





Special Note:  75mm AT artillery battery units (these are in several infantry and armored divisions) which have factors 


(2)-5-8 have errors in stacking on almost every counter.  The actual stacking value is 2 on the front side and 1 on the back.





21st Pz:  On Board D, the hex north of the "N" in Caen contains the 305 Art.  Five hexes south of that is the 11/155.





130th Pz:  III/130 needs a division number.  The reverse side of 8/2 should be 2-3-6.





16th LW:  II/16 needs division number.





1st Flk:  III/3 goes four hexes south of Easy Green.





932nd Flk:  (Cherbourg Chart) the unit between ROUL and TLVS is 932/5.





II FS Corps:  On the German Unit Entry Schedule, 8 June, I,II,III/6 FS(91) should be 1,2,3/II FS.  On 1 August, Rennes, 1,2,3/II FS should be I,II,III/2 FS.





Security Units:  In the Cherbourg chart, the 583 Sec. is in the proper place for the Campaign Game but does not appear in the scenario.





Ost:  The 627th Ost enters 8 June at Redon.





Rail:  Entry Schedule 6 June, Rennes, 1/2,3 should be 1/6,11.





MKB:  MKB CHER is located in the same hex as the "R" in Cherbourg.  MKB NICH and PAIR counter pcitures are reversed on the board.





Fortified Areas:  CARP 1,2,3 are on Board D.





Minor Forts:  CAPL fort is in the same hex as MKB BROM.  DUVR fort is on Board D one hex NW of Douvre.











QUESTIONS and ANSWERS





Counters.  How can you use the German 752nd HQ?


A.  It is an independent HQ which may supply up to three independent non-artillery units.





Map.  Where is the British "Main" Landing Zone?


A.  Zone M.





Map.  What is the status of coastal artillery units in the same hex as a fort?  Do they count against stacking?


A.  They are always considered to be outside the fort.  For total stacking in the hex only.





TEC:  Do roads cancel the advance limit through towns and bocage?


A.  No.





TEC:  Do coastal hexes cost two MP (per TEC) or just one if entered from another land hex?


A.  This is the Paul Revere rule:  One if by land, two if by sea.





TEC:  The TEC says AIR INT counters eliminate the ability of units to cross RR bridges at reduced penalty.  Do the units have that ability?


A.  Yes.





CRT:  What size are HQ units for loss purposes?


A.  Battalion.





CRT/TEC:  What are the losses if an armored unit and an infantry unit attack from a bocage hex?


A.  If the result is LS, both LS.  If the result is L1, infantry L1, armor L2.  If the result is L2, infantry L2, armor ELIM.





CAM:  Isn't an armor, infantry, and artillery defensive combination treated as INF + ARM?


A.  Yes.





Rail Interdiction Table:  Is the 6-11 column correct?


A.  No, it should be 6-10.





Fort Chart:  Is the first number on a fort counter the number of units or stacking points which may be placed in the fort?


A.  Units.





Fort Chart:  Is a unit under a fort on a hill doubled or quadrupled?


A.  Doubled.





Bombardment Table:  Is a die roll of one with a minus one DRM an automatic miss?


A.  No.  One is the lowest a die roll may be modified to.





Bombardment Table:  What good are rockets (considering the minus one DRM)?


A.  Rockets are not affected by the minus one DRM.





German Entry Chart:  The 12/I,II 88mm Flak are listed twice on the set-up of II FS Corps.  Should the 12/I,II 150mm Flak be substituted for the second listing?


A.  Yes.





German Entry Chart:  Where does the II FS Training Regiment go?


A.  It enters 1 August at Rennes and consists of the I,II,III/2FS - not as listed on the chart.





I.B.11.  May you move a unit one hex no matter what?


A.  No.  It must have the required MPs available to make a move.





I.C.,E.  Must a unit be supplied to strategic move?  Mech move?


A.  Yes.  Yes.





I.E.  Can the German player strategic move through interdicted hexes?


A.  Yes.





I.I.13.  May artillery advance after combat?


A.  Only range one artillery.





II.B.,III.B  Can an infantry unit with a zero attack factor allow an attack by artillery?  Allow a +2 CAM if stacked with armor?


A.  No.  Yes.





II.B.5.a.  Can an artillery unit spot for itself?  Does this apply to support fire as well as defensive fire?  Can it spot for another artillery unit?


A.  Yes.  Yes.  Yes.





II.B.5.c.  Are adjacent firing artillery units immune to combat results also?


A.  Yes.





II.B.7.  Do artillery units with inverted defense strengths greater than two have remnants?


A.  No.





II.D.  What happens if units of the 711th Division are on the board but their HQ is not?


A.  They are out of supply only if the units are more than eight hexes from the board edge along roads A and B.





II.D.  I seem to have an extra German supply unit.


A.  Not really.  It is for the variant 319th Division.





II.D.  I seem to have one Allied supply unit missing.


A.  Yes.  Make one out of the spare round counter.





II.D.1.a.  Can HQ units, in movement phases or retreats, move through another HQ?


A.  Yes.  They may not end a phase stacked with another HQ.





II.D.1.d.,e.  For once and for all, can any independent units be supplied by Division HQ?


A.  No.  Only by Corps.





II.D.5.a.  Is this true for only divisional US artillery groups?  Is it true during the Combat Phase also?


A.  Yes. Yes.





II.D.8.  Can regimental Flak subordinate batteries trace supply to Korps HQ?  Can independent Flak batteries trace supply to regimental Flak HQ?  Must Flak batteries trace supply routes even though they do not consume suppy units?  Are the effects of being out of supply the same as for other units?


A.  Yes, up to six.  No.  Yes.  Yes.





II.E.2.  If a unit is disrupted and another friendly unit enters that hex, is it disrupted also?


A.  Yes.  There is not much actual effect here though because most disruption takes place during defensive fire.





III.C.2.b.  The rule says that a zone of interdiction may be one hex and then later that the radius does not inclue the AIR INT hex.  Which is correct?


A.  The former.  One or two TAC factors give a one hex AIR INT.  Three or four give seven hexes and so forth.





III.C.2.c.  Is there a cumulative effect to AIR INT counter zones of control?


A.  No.





III.C.3.e.  May I keep carpet bombers in the boxes waiting for favorable weather?


A.  No.  Placing bombers in the boxes on the first turn commits them for three turns, the second of which (only) is the bombing turn.  If you wish to change a location or bomb again, you must start a whole new three turn procedure.





III.C.3.e.1.  Are any hexes prohibited to carpet bombers?  Are there any modifiers for other hexes?


A.  Only swamp and flooded hexes.  No.





IV.A.  Is naval (and air) bombardment affected by terrain?


A.  Only where prohibited.





IV.B.4.  In exactly which cases can forts and their units ignore retreats?


A.  Only when there are forts with units in them.  An unoccupied landfronte fort which receives a retreat result is destroyed.





IV.B.5.  An infantry units is inside a fort (which is treated as armor) and there is also an infantry unit stacked outside.  Do these count as INF + ARM on the CAM?


A.  No, as INF.





IV.B.7.  Is an unoccupied minor fort or fortified area destroyed if occupied by the Allies?  What is the cost in MP to enter such a hex?  May the unit continue movement if MPs remain?


A.  Yes.  Only the normal cost of terrain.  Yes.





IV.B.7.  Does this rule apply to coastal strongpoints or unoccupied landfronte forts since they have no units in them?


A.  No.  They must be destroyed by a successful attack.





V.A.  Can the 12SS enter the map on 6 June or must it wait until the 7th?


A.  It must wait until 7 June. (Change.)





V.C.5.a.  Does this include HQ units?


A.  No.





V.C.7.b.  Can a beachhead marker be destroyed by artillery fire?


A.  No.





V.C., IX.E.  Exactly what are the landing and stacking allowances during the invasion turn?


A.  During 6 June only, stacking requirements must be met (for the Allies) on land hexes at the end of the Allied Floow-up Movement phase and from then on (any number of units may occupy a landing box).  The landing requirements in IX.E.3. do not go into effect until 7 June.  The triple landing factors are counted from then.





VIII.D.E.  What is the weather at the start of these scenarios?


A.  Fair for both.





IX.F.5.a.  This is confusing.  Do the Germans get one supply a turn in Benelux and in Brittany or one per turn in Benelux or in Brittany?


A.  The German receives supply from the pool only and may at his option start one of those received in Brittany.





IX.C.3.  How is a storm handled, specifically the third day?  The rule says ST-1 or F.  The chart says ST-2 or F.


A.  Go by the rule - ST-1 or F.  Day four is St-2 if four was St-1; day five is St-1 or F; day six is ST-1 if five was St-1; and seven is F.





IX.D.7.c.  What is the status of an eliminated Corps HQ?


A.  The Corps HQ is always assumed to have surviving subordinates and is always returned to play.





IX.E.  Can follow-up units be held off and enter during the build-up or subsequent phases?


A.  Yes.





IX.E.3.a.  Do the first ten turns include 6 June?


A.  No.  From 7 June to 16 June.





Scenario 5, IX.F.2.c.  Does the 711th Division activate at greater than (IX.F.2.c.) or greater than or equal to (Scenario 5, Rule 3)?


A.  According to whether you are playing the Campaign Game or the Scenario.





IX.F.5.a.  Do destroyed HQ restarting on the entry tracks re-trigger their supplies?


A.  No.





IX.F.5.a.  Where does supply start for German divisional HQ?


A.  With the HQ.





IX.H.  Can supply units that land on British beaches be used by US HQ and vice versa?


A.  Yes.





IX.I.  Can the beachhead counter of a landing box be used while the Mulberry is being built?


A.  Yes.





IX.J.4.  Must German units de-train when subject to Air Bombardment?


A.  Yes.





IX.J.7.  When must a rail unit cease rail movement during a turn?


A.  Anywhere between the third and fourth city or cut hex.





IX.L.  Can an air supply unit be dropped to any HQ unit or just to airborne?


A.  Any HQ unit.





IX.L.3.  How are air supply units lost?


A.  The same as other supplies, by landing on a German unit, or suffering a D or D/LS result on the Drift Diagram.





IX.M.  Does Allied Unit Withdrawal cost anything?


A.  Yes.  It uses a beach, port, or mulberry capacity point per stacking point just as debarkation does.  The total debarkation and withdrawal points must never exceed capacity.





XII.B.  I don't understand the one hex range versus the Allied unit in one of the bridge hexes.  Also, do you add or subtract two?


A.  The range is the distance from the Pioniere unit to the Allied unit.  When the range is one and the Allied unit is also adjacent to the bridge hex, you subtract two.





XII.C.  Why can't the British have the Hedgerow Cutter also?


A.  Give it to them one week after the US gets it.  The British had less need/urgency for the invention since the type of terrain they were involved in contained less bocage.











RULES VARIATIONS





The following are suggested variations on existing rules.  These changes increase realism at a very slight cost in game length.  Their effect on the outcome of most games should be minimal.








Retreat (I.I.12.)


If a unit is forced to retreat so that it ends the retreat farther (in hexes) from its immediate HQ unit than before the start of the combat phase, it must lose an extra step.  This variant will hurt the German player more since he will have to do more retreating.





Artillery Spotting (II.B.)


Divisional artillery must have their spotting done by members of their won division or one of the three independent units assigned to that division.  Corps artillery has spotting done by any sub-unit of the corps if playing by Corps Organization rules below or by any unit if not.





Surrender (II.C.)


Any unit dependent upon a HQ for supply (this includes all divisional and independent - artillery and non-artillery - units) plus all flak units are subject to surrender.  If any such unit is completely and continuously isolated from its HQ for three consecutive turns, it surrenders at the friendly reset phase of the third turn, and is removed from the board.  Surrender does not happen if an opposing unit is not adjacent to "accept" the surrender.  A unit does not have to surrender if it is in a city hex, in any fort hex except a field fort, or is in the same hex with another unit which does not require a supply source or does not have to surrender.  The three turns are still counted but surrender does not take place until the unit moves to a hex in which surrender may happen.  Surrendered units are never replaced or re-inforced.  This rule is a bonus for the Allies but is designed to clear up situations where units can actually benefit themselves by just staying behind lines.  It should be used in conjunction with the Retreat rule above to "tidy up" the fronts a bit.  A unit determined to stand and fight in a good defensive position is not penalized but unsupplied tourists will be discouraged.





Supply Movement (II.D.)


Any supply unit (except air supply) which starts a movement phase with a HQ unit may stay with that HQ throughout the movement phase no matter how or how for the HQ moves.  The HQ and supply must move together and the supply cannot continue to move after the HQ stops.  This does not apply to units in the strategic movement boxes.





Corps Organization (II.D.)


This section is the greatest change to existing procedures.  It changes Corps HQ responsibilities and is strongly suggested for multi-player games.





For the six non-divisional artillery units they are already responsible for, Corps HQ must use spotters which are part of the corps.  These will include all subordinate HQ and their units in addition to the artillery itself.  To spot for this artillery, a division's HQ unit must be within an eight hex radius of the corps HQ unit and spotting units of the division must be within eight hexes of their HQ.  The artillery must still be within eight hexes of their HQ's.  Assignments of the divisional HQ's which report to a Corps HQ must be made during the replacement phase of a player's turn and do not take effect until the next turn.  The assignments and limitations for Corps HQ are as follows.





For the Allies, each Corps HQ may contain up to three divisions, no more than one of which may be armored.  One airborne division may be added for free.  Divisions may contain three independent units and corps may have six independent artillery units per the regular rules.





The German list is a bit more complicated.  The II FS Corps may contain 2,3,5 and 6/FS.  The III Flak Corps may contain only Flak units but may contain all of them.  The three LW divisions are independent of any corps.  The other corps may contain up to four divisions and may add either the 752nd or one Nebelwerfer Brigade free.  These assignments are subject to the following chart:





                                          Divisions


Corps                                 Inf     Pz    SS


ISS, Pz. IISS, Pz                      1        1      3 


XLVII Pz, LVIII Pz                     2        3      1


LXXIV, LXXXIV, LXXXVI                  4        1      -








The numbers in the boxes are the maximum divisions of each type which can apply toward the total corps allowance of four.





As an optional added headache, do not allow divisions to make offensive attacks when their HQ are more than eight hexes from their assigned corps HQ.  Defensive fire may still be used normally.  The balancing effect here is to make up for the mainly Allied bias in the other rules presented here.  Since the Allies will do most of the attacking, they will be affected most.  The overall rational is to encourage players to keep their commands together per normal military practice.





The above may seem a bit of trouble at times but it does give a better feel for organizational difficulties.  The corps rules apply to the scenarios as well as the Campaign Game and the astute player will notice that in many cases divisions will be left without corps artillery support.  This is intended and gives a bit of help to the attcker in the first, third, and fifth scenarios.





This does not apply to units in the strategic movement boxes.











